OVER THE COUNTER SALES \$2.75 INCLUDING G.S.T.



T A S M A N I A N G O V E R N M E N T GAZETTE

PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY ISSN 0039-9795

WEDNESDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2010

No. 21 030

CONTENTS

Notice	Page
Administration and Probate	146
Associations Incorporation	150
Business Names	150
Cities/Councils	153
Drainage Areas/Trusts/Water Districts	149
Electoral	147
Energy Regulator	149
Gazette Publication Service Fees	146
Heritage	151
Living Marine Resources	150
Notices to Creditors	145
Rail	147
Rules Publication	152
Tasmanian State Service Notices	165

Tasmanian Government Gazette

Text copy to be sent to Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd. Email: govt.gazette@thepat.com.au Fax: (03) 6216 4294 Mail: 123 Collins Street, Hobart TAS 7000

Order Information

When using this facility please ensure that your order and a copy of the material are faxed to Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd on (03) 6216 4294

Deadlines

All copy must be received by last mail Friday or 4pm Friday prior to publication. A proof will be emailed prior to publication. Please supply an email address in order for us to forward a proof. If your advertisement requires alterations, they are to be sent as soon as possible, but before 4pm on the Monday prior to publication. After this deadline Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd will not be held responsible for any errors and the advertisement will be printed.

Enquiries

Subscription and account enquiries phone (03) 6233 3148 Gazette Notice enquiries phone (03) 6233 6110

Out of Hours Special Gazette Notification Out-of-hours notification for Special Gazettes phone (03) 6233 2690

Notices to Creditors

WHEREAS PETER AYLWARD GAME late Vaucluse Gardens Macquarie Street Hobart in Tasmania widower/deceased died on the sixth day of September 2009 at Hobart in Tasmania and Mark Ellis Aylward Game of 19 Sweetapple Place Manly West in Queensland and Noel John Ware of Level 3 86 Collins Street Hobart in Tasmania have obtained Probate of the Will of the said Peter Aylward Game deceased. Notice is hereby given that all parties having claims under the Estate of the said Peter Aylward Game are required to send in to the Registrar of the Supreme Court of Tasmania the particulars of such claim in writing on or before the fifth day of March 2010 otherwise they will be excluded from any benefit of the assets in the hands of the Executor.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

WARE & PARTNERS, Solicitors for the Estate.

NORMA MARY MARTIN formerly of Mount St Vincent Nursing Home Ulverstone in Tasmania home duties who died on the seventh day of July 2009: Creditors next of kin and others having claims in respect of the property of the abovenamed deceased are required by the Executors Lee Clarice Cooper and Maxwell George Hudson c/- Friend & Edwards Lawyers 28a King Edward Street Ulverstone in Tasmania to send particulars to the said Executors on or before the third day of March 2010 after which date the Executors may distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which the Executors then have notice.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

FRIEND & EDWARDS LAWYERS, Solicitors to the Estate.

CYRIL EDWARD BATCHELOR late of 34 Bay Road New Town in Tasmania married deceased: Creditors next of kin and others having claims in respect of the property or Estate of the deceased Cyril Edward Batchelor who died on the nineteenth day of October 2009 are required by the Executor Tasmanian Perpetual Trustees Limited of 23 Paterson Street Launceston in Tasmania to send particulars to the said Company by the third day of March 2010 after which date the Executor may distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which it then has notice.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

DALE CUNNINGHAM, Senior Trust Administrator.

JOHN EDWARD CLOSE late of Queenborough Rise 1 Peel Street Sandy Bay in Tasmania Divorced Deceased: Creditors next of kin and others having claims in respect of the property or Estate of the deceased John Edward Close who died on the twenty-seventh day of October 2009 are required by the Executor Tasmanian Perpetual Trustees Limited of 23 Paterson Street Launceston in Tasmania to send particulars to the said Company by the third day of March 2010 after which date the Executor may distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which it then has notice.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

ALISON TAYLOR, Trust Administrator.

JENNIFER MEAD late of 13 Heritage Road St Helens in Tasmania sales representative divorced deceased: Creditors next of kin and others having claims in respect of the property or Estate of the deceased Jennifer Mead who died between the tenth day of September 2009 and the nineteenth day of September 2009 are required by the Executor Tasmanian Perpetual Trustees Limited of 23 Paterson Street Launceston in Tasmania to send particulars to the said Company by the third day of March 2010 after which date the Executor may distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which it then has notice.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

EWAN STEWART, Senior Trust Administrator.

Administration and Probate

THE ADMINISTRATION AND PROBATE ACT 1935

Notice of Intention to Apply for Letters of Administration

NOTICE is hereby given that after the expiration of fourteen days from the publication hereof application will be made to the Supreme Court of Tasmania in its Ecclesiastical Jurisdiction that Letters of Administration of the Estate of RONALD KEENE late of 497 Oceana Drive Howrah in Tasmania retired carpenter divorced deceased intestate may be granted to Wayne Keene of 201 Hawker Street Murdunna in Tasmania carpenter/single and Darren Keene of 201 Hawker Street Murdunna in Tasmania bricklayer single the sons of the said deceased.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

MURDOCH CLARKE, Solicitors for the Estate.

THE ADMINISTRATION AND PROBATE ACT 1935

Notice of Intention to Apply for Letters of Administration

NOTICE is hereby given that after the expiration of fourteen days from the publication hereof application will be made to the Supreme Court of Tasmania in its Ecclesiastical Jurisdiction that Letters of Administration of the Estate of GLENN JAMES HENSGEN late of 15 Tutton Avenue Huonville Tasmania welder bachelor deceased may be granted to Wendy Marie Steen of 17 Esplanade Cygnet in Tasmania home duties divorced and Kirsty Bettina Bunyan of 8 Jetty Road Cygnet in Tasmania home duties/never married the partner and nominated co-administrator of the said deceased.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

BAKER WILSON LAWYERS, Solicitors for the Applicants.

Gazette Publication Service Fees

Schedule 2

1. Service Fees

ADVERTISING RATES

	Current price \$ inc GST
Minimum charge per Ad Thereafter \$3.00 for every centimetre	31.90
Half page Ad Thereafter \$3.00 for every centimetre	72.60
Full page Ad	133.10
2. Subscription Fees	
Delivery to Government Departments	148.50
Delivery by Post	297.00
STATE SERVICE NOTICES	
Delivery by Post	203.50
SALE · OVER THE COUNTER	
Full Gazette	2.75
State Service Notice	1.10

Schedule 4

Policy Guidelines

1. The following categories of advertisements will not be accepted:----

- (a) material that is political or anti-government (this category includes election material and material opposing current government policies, etc.);
- (b) material that is sexist, racist or in any other ways discriminatory against or exploiting a person or group of people (this category includes advertisements for massage parlours, escort services, etc.);
- (c) tobacco advertising; and
- (d) material that promotes illegal activities.

2. Every *Gazette* carrying advertisements shall include the following disclaimer:—

Products and services advertised in this publication are not endorsed by the State of Tasmania and the State does not accept any responsibility for the content or quality of reproduction. The Contractor reserves the right to reject any advertising material it considers unsuitable for government publication.

3. The State's Representative may reject any material proposed for publication which is considered to be inappropriate for the *Gazette*.

METHOD OF SUBMITTING INFORMATION

Tasmanian Government Gazette

Send text copy (eg: Word document) to Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd via email: **govt.gazette@thepat.com.au** by mail: 123 Collins Street, Hobart TAS 7000 or by fax: (03) 6216 4294

Order Information

When using this facility please ensure that your order and a copy of the material are faxed to Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd on (03) 6216 4294

Deadlines

All copy must be received by last mail Friday or 4pm Friday prior to publication. A proof will be emailed prior to publication. Please supply an email address in order for us to forward a proof. If your advertisement requires alterations, they are to be sent as soon as possible, but before 4pm on the Monday prior to publication. After this deadline Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd will not be held responsible for any errors and the advertisement will be printed.

Enquiries

Subscription and account enquiries phone (03) 6233 3148 Gazette Notice enquiries phone (03) 6233 6110

Out of Hours Special Gazette Notification

Out-of-hours notification for Special Gazettes phone (03) 6233 2690

Rail

RAIL COMPANY ACT 2009 Sections 27(2)

Transfer notice in relation to rail infrastructure and related assets of the Crown in Right of Tasmania and certain contracts to which the Crown in Right of Tasmania is a party to Tasmanian Railway Pty Ltd

- 1. Pursuant to section 27(2) of the Rail Company Act 2009 (Tasmania) (the "Act"), I, THE HONOURABLE GRAEME LINDSAY STURGES MP, being and as the Minister administering the Act hereby transfer to Tasmanian Railway Pty Ltd (ABN 83 139 383 761) (Tasmanian Railway) the contracts listed in the Schedule to this Notice entered into by the Crown.
- 2. In this transfer notice, unless a contrary intention appears terms defined in the Act have the same meaning when used in this transfer notice.
- 3. This transfer notice takes effect on the day after completion occurred within the meaning of the Business Sale Agreement.

GRAEME LINDSAY STURGES, MP, Minister.

Schedule

The following contracts to which the Crown is a party:

Reference	Contracting Party	
DIER 983.187 Professional Services Contract - Level 2 Inspections of Non Operational Lines	Pitt and Sherry Holdings Pty Ltd	
DIER 983.201 Professional Services Contract - Open-Top Railway Bridges Sleeper Replacements	Pitt and Sherry Holdings Pty Ltd	
DIER 983.212 Professional Services Contract - Timber Railway Bridge Replacement 2009-09	Pitt and Sherry Holdings Pty Ltd	

Electoral

TASMANIAN ELECTORAL COMMISSION

Appointment of ordinary, mobile and pre-poll polling places required for the 2010 House of Assembly general election

THE Tasmanian Electoral Commission gives notice that, in accordance with sections 92 and 93 of the Electoral Act 2004, it has appointed the ordinary, mobile and pre-poll polling places listed below for the divisions of Bass, Braddon, Denison, Franklin and Lyons.

Note that all polling places have been appointed for all divisions, and that the headings only indicate the divisions in which the polling places are located.

> Tasmanian Electoral Commission 3 February 2010

Division of Bass

Ordinary Polling Places

Blessington Upper	Kings Meadows	Riverside
Branxholm	Lady Barron	Riverside West
Bridport	Launceston	Rocherlea
Derby	Launceston Central	Sandhill
Dilston	Lebrina	Scottsdale
East Launceston	Legana (Bass)	South Launceston
Elphin	Lilydale	St Leonards
Five Ways	Mowbray	Summerhill
General Hospital	Newnham	Targa
George Town	Newstead	Trevallyn
George Town South	Norwood	Waverley
Gladstone	Nunamara	West Launceston
Hadspen	Pipers River	Weymouth
Hillwood	Prospect	Whitemark
Inveresk	Prospect Vale	Windmill Hill
Invermay	Ravenswood	Winnaleah
Karoola	Ringarooma	Youngtown

Pre-poll Polling Places

Launceston

Mobile polling places

Bass Mobile Unit 1	Bass Mobile Unit 2
Bass Mobile Unit 3	Bass Mobile Unit 4

Places at which a mobile polling place may be operated

Ainslie House (Launceston)	Mount Esk Aged Care Facility
Ainslie House Hostel &	NESM Hospital
Nursing Home (Low	
Head)	
Aldersgate Home	North East Aminya Hostel
Aldersgate Village	Northbourne Park Units
Cadorna House	Presbyterian Homes Legana
Calvary on St Lukes Campus	Presbyterian Homes
2	Norwood
Dudley House	Prospect Court Retirement
-	Village
Fred French Masonic Home	St Vincents Hospital

George Town Hospital Glenara Lakes Apartments

James Scott Wing Nursing Home Masonic Garden Village Peacehaven

Division of Braddon

Tamar Park

Tyler Village

& Hostel

The Manor Nursing Home

Ordinary Polling Places

Abbotsham Acton Addison Street Ambleside Boat Harbour Brooklyn Burnie Calder Cooee Currie Devonport Central Devonport North Devonport South Devonport West Don East Devonport Edith Creek Elliott Forest Forth Gawler Grassy Gunns Plains Havenview Heybridge

Burnie

Braddon Mobile Unit 1

Braddon Mobile Unit 3

Coroneagh Park Nursing

Eliza Purton Home for the

Emmerton Park Aged Care

Home

Aged

Aged

Facility IBIS Care Wynyard

Meercroft Care Inc

Karingal Community

Melaleuca Home for the

Mersey Community Hospital

Highclere Irishtown Latrobe Marrawah Mawbanna Melrose Miandetta Montagu Montello Moorleah Natone Nixon Street North Motton Penguin Preston Queenstown Reekara Riana Ridgley Rocky Cape Roseberv Savage River Shorewell Park Sisters Beach Sisters Creek

Pre-poll Polling Places

Mobile polling places

Devonport

Braddon Mobile Unit 2

Braddon Mobile Unit 4

Burnie

Burnie

Umina Park

and Therapy Centre

Smithton Somerset South Burnie South Riana Sprent Spreyton Stanley Stowport Strahan Sulphur Creek Togari Tullah Turners Beach Ulverstone Central Ulverstone East Ulverstone South Upper Burnie Waratah West Ulverstone Wivenhoe

Wynyard Central

Wynyard West

Yolla

Zeehan

Austins Ferry Battery Point Bowen Road Brent Street Cascades Chigwell Claremont Collinsvale Cosgrove Creek Road Cross Street Dynnyrne Elizabeth Street

Elwick

Glenorchy East Goodwood Hobart Hobart Central Hobart South Hobart West Kingston (Denison) Lansdowne Crescent Lenah Valley Lower Sandy Bay Lutana Montrose Moonah Moonah North

3 February 2010

New Town Newdegate Roseneath Rosetta Sandfly (Denison) Sandy Bay Sandy Bay Beach St Peters Swan Taroona Tolosa Waimea Heights Windermere

Pre-poll Polling Places

Glenorchy Hobart

Mobile polling places

Denison Mobile Unit 2 Denison Mobile Unit 1 Denison Mobile Unit 4 Denison Mobile Unit 3

Places at which a mobile polling place may be operated

Calvary Health Care Lenah Valley Glenview Home Inc Guilford Young Grove

Mary Ogilvy Homes Society Mary's Grange Nursing Home Roval Hobart Hospital St Ann's Homes Incorporated St Helens Hospital

Inc. Rosary Gardens Strathaven Strathglen The Gardens Claremont The Hobart Private Hospital Vaucluse Gardens Lodge

Sandown Village Apartments Southern Cross Care (TAS)

St John's Hospital

Division of Franklin

Ordinary Polling Places

Adventure Bay Alonnah Places at which a mobile polling place may be operated Barnes Bay Bellerive Blackmans Bay Mt St Vincent Nursing Home Bligh Cambridge North West Private Hospital Clarendon Vale Cradoc North West Regional Hospital Cygnet Dover Smithton District Hospital Franklin Uniting Aged Care Strathdevon Geeveston Geilston Bay Yaraandoo Nursing Home Glen Huon Howden

Howrah Huonville Judbury Kettering Kingston (Franklin) Kingston Beach Lauderdale Lindisfarne Loatta Road Maranoa Heights Margate Middleton Montagu Bay Mornington Mountain River Old Beach

Port Huon Ranelagh Richmond Risdon Vale Rokeby Sandfly (Franklin) Sandford Seven Mile Beach Snug South Arm Southport Surges Bay Tranmere Warrane Wentworth Street Woodbridge

Pre-poll Polling Places

Rosny Park

Mobile polling places

Kingston

Franklin Mobile Unit 1 Franklin Mobile Unit 2

Abbotsfield Albuera

Fern Tree Glenorchy

Division of Denison Ordinary Polling Places

> Mount Nelson Mount Stuart

3 February 2010

Places at which a mobile polling place may be operated

Bishop Davies Court	Maranatha Retirement
Bowditch Hostel	Homes Queen Victoria Home for the
Eldercare Home	Aged St Ann's Compton Downs
Esperance Multi Purpose Centre	Snug Village Hostel
Freemasons Homes of Southern Tasmania	The Hobart Clinic
Hawthorn Village	Uniting Aged Care Lillian Martin Home

Division of Lyons

Ordinary Polling Places

Avoca Bagdad Beaconsfield Beauty Point Bicheno Bishopsbourne Bothwell Bracknell Bridgewater Brighton Broadmarsh Bronte Buckland Campania Campbell Town Carrick Chudleigh Claude Road Colebrook Coles Bay Copping Cressy Deloraine Dodges Ferry Dromedary Dunalley Elizabeth Town Ellendale Epping Evandale Exeter

Fingal Orford Forcett Ouse Frankford Parattah Gagebrook Perth Glengarry Pontville Glenora Port Arthur Granton Port Sorell Gravelly Beach Primrose Sands Gretna Pyengana Hagley Railton Hamilton Ross Saltwater River Kelso Kempton Sassafras Lachlan Scamander Legana (Lyons) Sheffield Sidmouth Levendale Longford Sorell Lower Barrington St Helens Magra St Marys Mathinna Swansea Maydena Taranna Meander Tea Tree Midway Point Triabunna Miena Tunnack Wesley Vale Mole Creek Molesworth Westbury Moriarty Westerway New Norfolk Whitemore New Norfolk North Wilmot Nubeena Oatlands

Pre-poll Polling Places

As listed for other divisions

Mobile polling places

Lyons Mobile Unit 1	Lyons Mobile Unit 2
Lyons Mobile Unit 3	Lyons Mobile Unit 4

Places at which a mobile polling place may be operated

Beaconsfield District Health Service	May Shaw Health Centre
Beaconsfield Park Inc	Medea Park Residential Care
Campbell Town Health and	Midlands Multi-Purpose Health
Community Service	Centre
Corumbene Nursing Home fo	rMillbrook Rise Centre
the Aged Inc	
Deloraine District Hospital	Ningana Eastside Care
Eskleigh Home	Rubicon Grove
Glendel Homes	St Helens District Hospital
Grenoch Home	Tandara Lodge
Kanangra Hostel	Toosey Aged and Community
-	Care

Drainage Areas/Trusts/ Water Districts

WATER MANAGEMENT ACT 1999

Report on the Draft Ansons River Catchment Water Management Plan 2009

THE Tasmanian Planning Commission hereby gives notice that a report on the review of representations received in relation to the Draft Ansons River Catchment Water Management Plan 2009, and the report of the Secretary of the Department of Primary Industries, Parks, Water and Environment, has been provided to the Minister for Primary Industries, Parks, Water and Environment in accordance with section 27A of the *Water Management Act 1999*.

Copies of the report are available for inspection at the Commission's office at:

Level 3, 144 Macquarie Street, Hobart

The report is also available on the Commission's website http://www.planning.tas.gov.au

Enquiries can be directed to the Commission by phoning (03) 6233 2795 or emailing enquiry@planning.tas.gov.au

Dated this third day of February 2010.

GREG ALOMES, Executive Commissioner.

Energy Regulator

TASMANIAN ECONOMIC REGULATOR

Electricity Supply Industry (Price Control) Regulations 2003

Regulation 19(2)

NOTICE OF DECLARATION OF ELECTRICAL SERVICES

I, GLENN PETER APPLEYARD, Regulator, hereby give notice, pursuant to regulation 19(2) of the *Electricity Supply Industry (Price Control) Regulations 2003*, that I have formed the requisite opinion and consequently declare the following services provided by Hydro Electric Corporation (ARBN 072 377 158):

- fast raise contingency frequency control ancillary service;
- slow raise contingency frequency control ancillary service; and
- delayed raise contingency frequency control ancillary service;

to meet the Tasmanian local requirement, as declared electrical services.

The Statement of Reasons for declaring these services is available on the Regulator's website: www.economicregulator. tas.gov.au.

Dated this third day of February 2010.

G. P. APPLEYARD, Regulator.

Living Marine Resources

Living Marine Resources Management Act 1995

FISHERIES (ABALONE MANAGEMENT PLAN) ORDER 2010

I MAKE the following order under section 48A of the Living Marine Resources Management Act 1995.

Dated this twenty-fifth day of January 2010.

DAVID LLEWELLYN, Minister for Primary Industries and Water.

1. Short title

This Order may be cited as the Fisheries (Abalone Management Plan) Order 2010.

2. Commencement

This Order takes effect on the day on which it is published in the Gazette.

3. Rule 3 of Fisheries (Abalone) Rules 2009 changed

I make the following procedural changes to rule 3 of the Fisheries (Abalone) Rules 2009* by:

inserting the following paragraph after paragraph (m) in (a) the definition of "designated port":

(n) the area within a radius of 50 metres on the landward side from the high-tide mark closest to the point of launching or retrieving a fishing vessel from anywhere on Flinders Island;

4. Rule 39 of Fisheries (Abalone) Rules 2009 changed

I make the following changes to remove an anomaly in rule 39 of the Fisheries (Abalone) Rules 2009* by:

- (a) omitting subrule 1;
- (b) omitting "in a part of the blacklip abalone fishery" in paragraph 1 of subrule 2;
- omitting "different", "blacklip abalone" and "from that specified in the prior fishing report" in subrule (2)(a). (c)

5. Interpretation

Expressions in this Order have the same meaning as in the Living Marine Resources Management Act 1995 and the Fisheries (Abalone) Rules 2009.

Explanatory note

This Order changes the management plan for the abalone fishery to give fishers more options to launch and retrieve a dinghy from Flinders Island, as well as to clarify an anomaly regarding changing part of the fishery report.

*S.R.2009 No.151

Business Names

BUSINESS NAMES ACT 1962

NOTICE is hereby given that the names of:-

No.	Name
42397	C. S & T. M Forward Mechanical Repair Services
46738	B. G. J Steelstocks

ť.	NMENT GAZET	TE 3 FEBRUARY 201
	No.	Name
	64879	Helen O'Grady Children's Drama Academy
	76781	Total Cashguard Services
	77552	Lips Chips
	100743	Burlington Ocean Services
	107170	Email Metals Group
	113581	Director's Studios and Suites
	BN01297454	Battery Point Village Store
	BN01298914	Chubb Finance
	BN01305499	K Mart
	BN01366865	The Kettle Chip Company
	BN01371770	Extra Channels
	BN01404799	Jade Blossom
	BN01409232	Telstra Licensed Shop Devonport
	BN01411147	Nautical Bookkeeping Solutions
	BN01412966	Devonport Physiotherapy Services
	BN01462428	Union Steel
	BN01521366	Disney Destinations
	BN01525207	Kamikaze Motorcycles
	BN01535390	Summer Delights
	BN01536825	Barrick Australia Pacific
	BN01567901	Capral Aluminium Centres
	BN01578716	Jivali Designs
	BN01579320	Woody Unreal Deals
	BN01587766	Harcourts Eastern Shore
	BN01611940	Serenity Landscapes
	BN01642947	Custom Glass & Aluminium

are struck off the Business Names Register in pursuance of Section 19 of the Business Names Act 1962.

Dated this twenty-ninth day of January 2010.

C. BATT. Commissioner for Corporate Affairs.

Associations Incorporation

ASSOCIATIONS INCORPORATION ACT 1964

NOTICE is hereby given that the following associations changed their names:-

F	r	n	r	n	•
	I	U	1		•

No.	Date	Name
01853	15/1/2010	Cressy Bowls Incorporated
02700	15/1/2010	The Royal Life Saving Society Australia Tasmania Branch Inc
03006	22/1/2010	Primrose Sands Sub-Branch and Golf Club of the Returned and Services League of Australia (Inc)
03333	8/1/2010	Moonah Promotions Inc
03869	22/1/2010	Kingborough Lions United Soccer Club Inc
IA08757	22/1/2010	Northern Midlands Vet Cluster Inc
IA08820	8/1/2010	National Seniors Association North West Coast-Ulverstone Branch Inc
IA09725	15/1/2010	Tasmanian Dragon Boat Federation Inc

3 February 2010

Date

15/1/2010

15/1/2010

22/1/2010

8/1/2010

22/1/2010

22/1/2010

To become:

No.

08153

02700

03006

03333

03869

IA08757

IA08820 8/1/2010

IA09725 15/1/2010

ASSOCIATIONS INCORPORATION ACT 1964

NOTICE is hereby given that at the expiration of 3 months from the date hereof the incorporation of:—

No.	Name.
02337	Soroptimist International of Hobart Inc
02426	Rangelagh – Grove Cricket Club Inc
03075	Launceston Blu-J's Softball Club Incorporated
03128	Circular Head Garden Club Incorporated
03327	Lions Club of Glamorgan Inc
03684	Great Western Tiers Tourism Association Inc
03722	Melrose District Progress Association Inc
03865	Working Dog Club of Tasmania Inc
04015	Bruny Island Cricket Club Incorporated
04198	Swansea Online Access Centre Inc
IA09676	Lions Club of Bicheno Inc
IA09948	Friends For Life Inc
IA09999	Devonport Tourism Association Incorporated

will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be cancelled pursuant to Section 34(2) of the Act.

Dated this twenty-ninth day of January 2010.

C. BATT, Commissioner for Corporate Affairs.

Heritage



NOTICE OF PERMANENT ENTRY OF PLACE IN THE TASMANIAN HERITAGE REGISTER

In accordance with sections 21(1)(a) and 26(c) of the Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995 (the Act), the Tasmanian Heritage Council has entered the following places in the Tasmanian Heritage Register on a permanent basis:

Chandler's Nursery House, 75 Queens Street, Sandy Bay Crabtree Federation Houses, 24-26 Bourke Street, Launceston Conjoined Victorian Houses, 4-6 Bourke Street, Launceston Gee House, 319 Brisbane Street West, West Launceston 44 Hill Street, West Launceston Byronya, 6 Hillside Crescent, West Launceston Tasmanian Woolgrowers' Agency Store, 31-35 St John Street, Launceston C H Smith Complex, 16-24 Charles Street, and parts of Canal and Cimitiere Streets, Launceston Tunbridge Bridge, Main Road, Tunbridge Deloraine High School, 24 Lansdowne Place, Deloraine Swanston Street Free Kindergarten, 80-82 Swanston Street, New Town

Any person who lodged an objection or submission may appeal to the Resource Management and Planning Appeal Tribunal against a decision of the Heritage Council under section 27 of the Act. An appeal must be made in writing and lodged with the Appeal Tribunal (GPO Box 2036 Hobart 7001) within 30 days after this notice.

Michael Lynch Chair 3 February 2010

Dated this twenty-ninth day of January 2010. C. BATT, Commissioner for Corporate Affairs.

Name

Inc

Inc

Cressy Bowls & Community Club

Primrose Sands RSL Sub Branch

Moonah Business Community Inc

Tasmanian Life Long Learning Inc

National Seniors Australia North West Coast-Ulverstone Branch

Dragon Boating Tasmania Inc

Australia Tasmania Branch Inc

Incorporated

Royal Life Saving Society

Kingborough Lions United

Football Club Inc

ASSOCIATIONS INCORPORATION ACT 1964

NOTICE is hereby given that as from the date hereof the incorporation of:—

No.	Name
00987	Eastside Table Tennis League (Incorporated)
01748	Kunama Ski Club Inc
03358	The 500 Car Club of Tasmania Incorporated
03954	Tasmanian Sporting Volunteers Club Inc
IA08687	Dodges Ferry Junior Soccer Association Inc
IA09028	Festival of Dreams Inc
IA09126	Smithton Primary School Association Inc
IA09203	Hobart United FC Inc
IA09503	Northern Tasmanian Billiards and Snooker Association Inc
IA09633	Bracknell Improvement Association Inc
IA09651	City of Clarence Basketball Association Inc
IA09660	Cavaliers Basketball Club Inc
IA09681	New Norfolk Basketball Association Incorporated
IA09754	Blokes United Inc

is cancelled pursuant to Section 34 of the Act.

Dated the twenty-eighth day of January 2010.

C. BATT, Commissioner for Corporate Affairs.

ASSOCIATIONS INCORPORATION ACT 1964

NOTICE is hereby given that as from the date hereof the incorporation of:—

N0.	Name
01086	Tasmanian Swimming Pool Association Incorporated
03586	Care Counsel Inc

is cancelled pursuant to Section 34A of the Act.

3.7

λT

Dated this twenty-ninth day of January 2010.

C. BATT, Commissioner for Corporate Affairs.

Rules Publication

Rules Publication Act 1953

NOTICE OF THE MAKING OF STATUTORY RULES

IN ACCORDANCE with the provisions of the *Rules Publication Act 1953*, notice is given of the making of the following statutory rules:—

Title of Act (if any) under which statutory rules made	Number allotted to statutory rules	Title or subject matter of statutory rules
(1) Criminal Investigation (Extra-Territorial Offences) Act 1987	S. R. 2010, No. 5	Proclamation under section 3(3)
(2) Dangerous Substances (Safe Handling) Act 2005	S. R. 2010, No. 6	Dangerous Substances (Safe Handling) Amendment Regulations 2010
(3) Dog Control Amendment Act 2009	S. R. 2010, No. 7	Proclamation under section 2
(4) Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act 1994	S. R. 2010, No. 8	Environmental Management and Pollution Control (Underground Petroleum Storage Systems) Regulations 2010
(5) Taxi and Luxury Hire Car Industries Act 2008	S. R. 2010, No. 9	Taxi and Luxury Hire Car Industries (Review of Decisions) Regulations 2010
(6) Traffic Act 1925	S. R. 2010, No. 10	Traffic (Compliance and Enforcement) Amendment (Taxi and Luxury Hire Cars) Regulations 2010

GENERAL PURPORT OR EFFECT OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED STATUTORY RULES

(1) Proclamation under section 3(3) of the Criminal Investigation (Extra-Territorial Offences) Act 1987

This proclamation -

- (a) declares certain laws of other States and Territories to be corresponding laws for the purposes of the *Criminal Investigation (Extra-Territorial Offences) Act 1987*; and
- (b) revokes an earlier proclamation of the same kind.

(2) Dangerous Substances (Safe Handling) Amendment Regulations 2010

These regulations amend the *Dangerous Substances (Safe Handling) Regulations 2009* so as to increase the allowable quantity of Type 2 fireworks for fireworks display permits generally to 20kg gross weight but to allow the Secretary of the Department to set a lesser amount generally or for a particular permit.

(3) Proclamation under section 2 of the Dog Control Amendment Act 2009

This proclamation fixes 1 July 2010 as the day on which the provisions of the *Dog Control Amendment Act 2009*, other than sections 7 and 17(c), commence.

(4) Environmental Management and Pollution Control (Underground Petroleum Storage Systems) Regulations 2010 These regulations prescribe requirements relating to the installation, operation and decommissioning of underground petroleum storage systems.

(5) Taxi and Luxury Hire Car Industries (Review of Decisions) Regulations 2010

These regulations provide for the review of certain administrative decisions under the Taxi and Luxury Hire Car Industries Act 2008.

(6) Traffic (Compliance and Enforcement) Amendment (Taxi and Luxury Hire Cars) Regulations 2010

- These regulations amend the Traffic (Compliance and Enforcement) Regulations 2001 by
 - (a) revising the schedule of traffic infringement notices in line with the commencement of the *Taxi and Luxury Hire Car Industries Act 2008*; and
 - (b) prescribing the failure to fit a windscreen in accordance with vehicle standards as an offence for which a traffic infringement notice may be served.

Copies of the abovementioned statutory rules may be purchased at Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd, 123 Collins Street, Hobart, Phone (03) 6233 3289 or Toll Free 1800 030 940; 80B Wilson Street, Burnie and State Offices, 68 Rooke Street, Devonport.

P. R. CONWAY, Chief Parliamentary Counsel.

PARLIAMENTARY STANDING COMMITTEE ON SUBORDINATE LEGISLATION

'Anyone who has problems with, or feels they are adversely affected by, any of the above Regulations can write to the Secretary of the Subordinate Legislation Committee, Legislative Council, Parliament House, Hobart, 7000.'

RUTH FORREST, MLC, Chairperson.

Cities/Councils

NORTHERN MIDLANDS COUNCIL DISPLAY OF GOODS ON A HIGHWAY BY-LAW BY-LAW NO. 1 OF 2009

A BY-LAW made under section 145 of the *Local Government Act 1993* for the purpose of regulating and licensing the display of goods on a highway in the Northern Midlands area.

PART 1 PRELIMINARY

1 Short Title

This By-law may be cited as the Display of Goods and Services on a Highway Bylaw no. 1 of 2008.

2 Application

This By-law applies to the whole of the Northern Midlands municipal area.

3 Interpretation

In this By-law, unless the contrary intention appears:

"authorised officer"	means an employee authorised by the General Manager
	for the purposes of this By-law;
"Council"	means the Northern Midlands Council;
"furniture"	means chairs, tables and umbrellas and display stands;
"highway"	means a local highway within the meaning of the Local
	Government (Highways) Act 1982;
"General Manager"	means the General Manager appointed by the Council to
	that position;
"licence"	means a licence issued by the Council in accordance
	with this By-law;
"display of goods	includes the offer, display or exposure for sale of, any
and services"	goods, services, merchandise, wares, commodity, article
	or thing.

PART 2 LICENCE

4 Licence

- (1) A person may apply to the council for a licence authorizing the display of goods and services to occur on a highway.
- (2) An authorised officer may grant a licence upon an application pursuant to clause 4(1) unconditionally, or subject to reasonable conditions.

5 Display of Goods without a licence

(1) A person must not cause or permit the display of goods and services on a highway except in accordance with a licence issued for that purpose.

PART 3 INFRINGEMENT NOTICES

6 Infringement Notices

- (1) An authorised officer may:
 - (a) issue an infringement notice to a person that the authorised officer has reason to believe is guilty of a specified offence;
 - (b) issue one infringement notice in respect of more than one specified offence;
 - (c) impose a monetary penalty for the specified offence in respect of which the infringement notice is issued.
- (2) Infringement notices may be issued in respect of the offences specified in Column 1 of the Schedule to this By-law and the penalty specified in Column 3 opposite the offence is the penalty payable under an infringement notice issued in respect of that offence.
- (3) In order to avoid the infringement notice being referred to the Director Monetary Penalties Enforcement Service for enforcement action the person issued with an infringement notice must comply with section 17 of the Monetary Penalties Enforcement Act 2005
- (4) An infringement notice alleging that a vehicle has been used in relation to a specified offence may be served by affixing it to that vehicle.
- (5) The Monetary Penalties Enforcement Act 2005 applies to an infringement notice issued under this By-law.

7 Infringement Notice Offences

All monies payable to the council or general manager under this By-law are a debt due to the Council and recoverable at law.

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3
CLAUSE	OFFENCE	PENALTY
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE		(Penalty Units)
5	Displaying of goods and services without a licence	2
	On-going daily offence of displaying goods & services without a licence	1

In witness whereof the Common Seal of the Northern Midlands Council was hereunto affixed this 26 day of January 2010, pursuant to a resolution of Council passed on the 25 day of January 2010 in the presence of us:

KIM POLLEY, Mayor

(CS)

ADAM WILSON, Acting General Manager

This By-law is certified as being in accordance with the law.

SHAUN McELWAINE, Legal Practitioner

Certified as being made in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993

ADAM WILSON, Acting General Manager

Confirmed by me this day of 2010

HON JIM COX MHA Minister for Local Government

NORTHERN MIDLANDS COUNCIL FREESTANDING SIGN BY-LAW BY-LAW NO. 3 OF 2009

A BY-LAW made under section 145 of the *Local Government Act 1993* for the purpose of regulating and licensing a freestanding sign on a highway in the Northern Midlands area.

PART 1 PRELIMINARY

Short Title

1. This By-law may be cited as Freestanding Sign By-Law No. 3 of 2009.

Application

2. This By-law applies to the whole of the Northern Midlands municipal area.

Interpretation

3. In this By-law, unless the contrary intention appears:-

"authorised officer"	means an employee or contractor authorised by the General Manager for the purposes of this By-law;
"Council"	means the Northern Midlands Council;
"highway"	means a local highway within the meaning of the Local Government (Highways) Act 1982;
"general manager"	Means the General Manager appointed by Council to that position.
"authorised officer"	means the authorised officer appointed by the Council to that position;
"licence"	means a licence issued by the Council in accordance with this By-law;
"freestanding sign"	means a portable sign that is not permanently fixed to the ground and is not attached to a building.
"sign"	 means any advertisement, notice, representation, slogan, symbol, statement of supergraphic whether illuminated or not, but does not include any sign: (i) erected or to be erected wholly inside any building (but not including any arcade); (ii) erected or to be erected in or upon any premises in a place or in a manner whereby it is not visible from any public place; (iii) lawfully erected for the control and regulation of traffic by or on behalf of the Department of Police and Emergency Services and the Department of Transport of the State of Tasmania or the Council; (iv) which gives only the name of any road street or public way.

PART 2 LICENCE

Licence

- 4. (1) A person may apply to the Council for a licence authorizing a freestanding sign on the highway.
 - (2) An authorised officer may grant a licence upon an application pursuant to clause 4(1) unconditionally, or subject to reasonable conditions.

A freestanding sign on a highway without a licence

5. (1) A person must not cause or permit a freestanding sign to be placed or left on a highway except in accordance with the conditions of a current licence.

PART 3 INFRINGEMENT NOTICES

6. Infringement Notices

- (1) An authorised officer may:
 - (a) issue an infringement notice to a person that the authorised officer has reason to believe is guilty of a specified offence;
 - (b) issue one infringement notice in respect of more than one specified offence;
 - (c) impose a monetary penalty for the specified offence in respect of which the infringement notice is issued.
- (2) Infringement notices may be issued in respect of the offences specified in Column 1 of the Schedule to this By-law and the penalty specified in Column 3 opposite the offence is the penalty payable under an infringement notice issued in respect of that offence.
- (3) In order to avoid the infringement notice being referred to the Director Monetary Penalties Enforcement Service for enforcement action the person issued with an infringement notice must comply with section 17 of the Monetary Penalties Enforcement Act 2005
- (4) An infringement notice alleging that a vehicle has been used in relation to a specified offence may be served by affixing it to that vehicle.
- (5) The Monetary Penalties Enforcement Act 2005 applies to an infringement notice issued under this By-law.

7 Infringement Notice Offences

All monies payable to the council or general manager under this By-law are a debt due to the Council and recoverable at law.

Column 1 CLAUSE		Column 2	Column 3
		OFFENCE	PENALTY
		GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE	(Penalty Units)
	5	Provision of free standing sign without a licence	2
	5	On-going daily offence for a free standing sign without a	1

In witness whereof the Common Seal of the Northern Midlands Council was hereunto affixed this 26 day of January 2010, pursuant to a resolution of Council passed on the 25 day of January 2010 in the presence of us:-

KIM POLLEY, Mayor	

(CS)

licence

ADAM WILSON, Acting General Manager

This By-law is certified as being in accordance with the law.

SHAUN McELWAINE, Legal Practitioner

Certified as being made in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993

ADAM WILSON, Acting General Manager

Confirmed by me this day of 2010

HON JIM COX MHA Minister for Local Government

NORTHERN MIDLANDS COUNCIL ON STREET DINING BY-LAW BY-LAW NO. 2 OF 2009

A BY-LAW made under section 145 of the *Local Government Act 1993* for the purpose of regulating and licensing dining on a highway in the Northern Midlands area.

PART 1 PRELIMINARY

Short Title

1. This By-law may be cited as the On Street Dining By-law no. 2 of 2009.

Application

2. This By-law applies to the whole of the Northern Midlands municipal area.

Interpretation

3. In this By-law, unless the contrary intention appears:-

"authorised officer"	means an employee or contractor authorised by the General Manager for the purposes of this By-law;
"Council"	means the Northern Midlands Council;
"furniture"	means chairs, tables and umbrellas and display stands;
"highway"	means a local highway within the meaning of the Local
	Government (Highways) Act 1982;
"general manager"	Means the General Manager appointed by Council to
	that position.
"authorised officer"	means the authorised officer appointed by the Council
	to that position;
"licence"	means a licence issued by the Council in accordance
	with this By-law;
"street dining"	means the consumption of food and or beverages by
	seated customers in an area on a highway external to a
	take-away food shop, hotel or restaurant licensed to
	serve food;

PART 2 LICENCE

Licence

- 4. (1) A person may apply to the Council for a licence authorizing street dining to take place on the highway.
 - (2) An authorised officer may, on behalf of Council, grant a licence to a person authorizing street dining on a highway, on such terms and conditions as he or she thinks fit.

Licence Responsibilities & Obligations

- 5. (1) The licensee must maintain the area where the licence applies and the area adjacent to it in a clean and sanitary manner;
 - (2) The licensee must not cause or permit the area where the licence applies and the area adjacent to be contaminated or insanitary;

Street dining without a licence

6. (1) A person must not cause or permit any furniture or other items to be placed or left on a highway for a purpose of encouraging or permitting street dining except in accordance with the conditions of a current licence.

PART 3 INFRINGEMENT NOTICES

7 Infringement Notices

- (1) An authorised officer may:
 - (a) issue an infringement notice to a person that the authorised officer has reason to believe is guilty of a specified offence;
 - (b) issue one infringement notice in respect of more than one specified offence;
 - (c) impose a monetary penalty for the specified offence in respect of which the infringement notice is issued.
- (2) Infringement notices may be issued in respect of the offences specified in Column 1 of the Schedule to this By-law and the penalty specified in Column 3 opposite the offence is the penalty payable under an infringement notice issued in respect of that offence.
- (3) In order to avoid the infringement notice being referred to the Director Monetary Penalties Enforcement Service for enforcement action the person issued with an infringement notice must comply with section 17 of the Monetary Penalties Enforcement Act 2005
- (4) An infringement notice alleging that a vehicle has been used in relation to a specified offence may be served by affixing it to that vehicle.
- (5) The Monetary Penalties Enforcement Act 2005 applies to an infringement notice issued under this By-law.

8 Infringement Notice Offences

All monies payable to the council or general manager under this By-law are a debt due to the Council and recoverable at law.

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	
CLAUSE	OFFENCE	PENALTY	
	GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE	(Penalty Units)	
5	Provision of street dining without a licence	2	
5	On-going daily offence to provide street dining without a licence	1	
5	Provision of street dining in an area that is not kept clean and hygienic	1	
5	On-going daily offence for the provision of street dining in an area that is not kept clean and hygienic	1	

In witness whereof the Common Seal of the Northern Midlands Council was hereunto affixed this 26 day of January 2010, pursuant to a resolution of Council passed on the 25 day of January 2010 in the presence of us:

(CS)

KIM POLLEY, Mayor

ADAM WILSON, Acting General Manager

This By-law is certified as being in accordance with the law.

SHAUN McELWAINE, Legal Practitioner

Certified as being made in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993

ADAM WISLON, Acting General Manager

Confirmed by me this day of 2010

HON JIM COX MHA Minister for Local Government

3 February 2010



Save time, money and your voice. Make sure there is only one cursor in your office!

What could be easier? Your next print job sent at the click of a mouse. Minutes later your documents are at the printers and you haven't even left your desk.

Now if only they could invent a computer that makes you coffee.

How about skipping the middle man altogether and ordering your printing online from your own catalogue? It's easy, it's flexible and it's fast.

No more chasing proofs or checking stock levels.

All your printing products can be available online, meaning others in your organisation will be able to place orders, enter variable data for items such as business cards, preview proofs and track the progress of their orders. What's more it's custom designed to suit your needs.

Call one of our sales representatives on 6233 3168 to discover why more people are using online ordering.

Now you have time to concentrate on more important things...like that coffee.



T E C H N O L O G Y

"environmentally responsible printer"

HOBART

123 Collins Street, Hobart TAS 7000 P 03 6233 3289 F 03 6216 4294

TECHNOPARK 33 Innovation Drive, Dowsing Point TAS 7010 P 03 6233 3168 F 03 6233 5346

GPO Box 307, Hobart TAS 7001 sales@thepat.com.au www.thepat.com.au



A bit fuzzy on your printing jargon?

Dont worry, our sales team know more than enough.

They also know one other very important fact: that it's just that - jargon.

Talk to one of our experienced sales representatives and you'll come away with a crystal clear understanding of the ins and outs of your printing job. We know what you want because we know the right questions to ask.

No guesses, no hazy ideas, no fudging...just the information needed to be assured that your publication will be a sight for sore eyes.

Call us on 6233 3168 for the bottom line on all your printing requirements.



"environmentally responsible printer"

HOBART

123 Collins Street, Hobart TAS 7000 P 03 6233 3289 F 03 6216 4294

TECHNOPARK 33 Innovation Drive, Dowsing Point TAS 7010 P 03 6233 3168 F 03 6233 5346

GPO Box 307, Hobart TAS 7001 sales@thepat.com.au www.thepat.com.au

3 FEBRUARY 2010

Our conscience is crystal clear.

Together we can make a difference.

Print Applied Technology remains ever vigilant in reducing the impact of its operations on the environment, and environmental management within our production facilities is considered a critical aspect of our business.

Our investment in a world class `Ecoclean' solvent recycling system from Europe has enabled us to recycle all our solvent liquids for reuse, instead of disposing of this material which is traditional industry practice. Waste paper is managed via extraction systems and a compaction unit, capturing and bundling all waste generated during the production cycle which is then collected for recycling, reducing landfill. Vegetable based inks are used where possible on our presses, and green office principles are employed.

Print Applied Technology now adds to these initiatives official certification by the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC). FSC certification is the "Gold Standard" for eco forestry worldwide, and as a `Chain of Custody' certificate holder we can now assure our valued customers that selected papers sourced for our operations are from responsibly managed forests.

The use of the highly guarded FSC trademark now also allows our customers to demonstrate their commitment to the growth of responsible forest management. Further to this, we can now share with you the knowledge that areas of natural wealth and endangered wildlife habitat are not being adversely affected as a consequence of our paper sourcing policy.

You too can help to protect our environment, by promoting and using FSC products.

For further information please contact Print Applied Technology or visit www.fscaustralia.org



print applied TECHNOLOGY

"environmentally responsible printer"



HOBART 123 Collins Street, Hobart TAS 7000 P 03 6233 3289 F 03 6216 4294

TECHNOPARK 33 Innovation Drive, Dowsing Point TAS 7010 P 03 6233 3168 F 03 6233 5346

GPO Box 307, Hobart TAS 7001 sales@thepat.com.au www.thepat.com.au

Disclaimer

Products and services advertised in this publication are not endorsed by the State of Tasmania and the State does not accept any responsibility for the content or quality of reproduction. The Contractor reserves the right to reject any advertising material it considers unsuitable for government publication.

Copyright

The Tasmanian Government Gazette and Tasmanian State Service Notices are subject to the Copyright Act. No part of any material published in the Tasmanian Government Gazette or the Tasmanian State Service Notices may be reproduced except in accordance with the Copyright Act. Printed by Print Applied Technology Pty Ltd under authority of the Government of the State of Tasmania